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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,
FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 5% Annual Report on the affairs of the
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

1) Financial Summary or performance of the Company:
The Company has prepared its standalone financial statements for the Financial Year

(‘F.Y") 2023-24. The highlights of Financial Statements of the Company's operations for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

- (Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Revenue from Operations 8134.01 5016.78
Other Income 30.56 14.62
Total Income 8164.57 5031.40
Earning before Finance Cost, Tax and 1660.85 1317.85
Depreciation
Less: Finance Cost 469.39 258.54 |
Less: Depreciation & Preliminary 601.16 326.61 |
expenses written off
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 590.30 732.70
Less: Provision for Taxation '

Current Tax 93.84 102.88
Deferred Tax 8.80 23.82
Tax Adjustments for earlier years 0.00 0.00
Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 487.62 605.99
Add: Other Comprehensive Income Nil Nil
Total Comprehensive Income for the 487.62 605.99
ear
Transfer to General Reserve Nil ) Nil
Balance at the end of the year 487.62 ~ 605.99
Earnings Per Share of face value of Rs 10000 10000
10/- each |
Basic Earnings Per Share 4876.17 6059.90 |
| Diluted Earnings Per Share 4876.17 6059.90
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2)

3)

4)

Financial Operations

During the year under review, the Company’s revenue from operations is 8134.01
Lakhs as against revenue from operation of Rs. 5016.78 Lakhs for the previous year.
The Company has generated Net Profit after tax of 487.62 Lakhs as against Net Profit
after tax of Rs. 605.99 Lakhs in the previous year. The figures for the corresponding
previous year has been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to make them
comparable.

Dividend

Considering future prospects and growth plans of the Company, the directors wish to
accumulate reserves; hence our directors have not recommended any dividend.

Share Capital
A. Authorised Capital:

During the year under review there was no change in the Authorised Capital of
the Company. The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh Only) divided into 10,000 (Ten Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten) each.

B. Paid up Capital:

As on March 31, 2024, there was no change in the issued, subscribed and paid-up
equity share capital of the Company. The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity
share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,00,000/- divided into 10,000 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each details are follows: -

Particulars No of Shares | Percentage  of
Holding

Flair Writing Industries Limited 9990 99.9%

Mr. Khubilal Jugraj Rathod jointly 10 01%

with M/ s Flair Writing Industries Limited

C. Issue of Shares with Differential Rights

The Company, under the provisions of Section 43 read with Rule 4(4) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 [Chapter IV], has not
issued any shares with differential rights.
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5)

6)

7)

Issue of Sweat Equity Shares

The Company, under the provisions of Section 54 read with Rule 8(13) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, has not issued any sweat
equity shares.

Issue of Employee Stock Options

The Company, under rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014, did not issue any shares with respect to any employee stock
option scheme.

Details of subsidiary/joint ventures/associate companies

As on 31st March 2024, the Company did not have any subsidiary /joint ventures/
associate companies.

Statutory Auditor

M/s. Jeswani & Rathore, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No: 104202W)
Mumbai are the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

The members of the Company in their First Annual General Meeting have appointed
M/s. Jeswani & Rathore Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 104202W) for conducting
statutory audit for next five years until the conclusion of 6" Annual General Meeting.
Board of Directors

Composition:

The following were members of the Company’s Board of Directors, as of 31t March
2024 -

Sr. No. | Name of Director

1 Mr. Khubilal Jugraj Rathod

2 Mr. Vimalchand Jugraj Rathod
8 Mr. Rajesh Khubilal Rathod
4

5

Mr. Mohit Khubilal Rathod
Mr. Sumit Rathod

The Company being a private limited company, the directors are not liable to retire by
rotation.

Change in Directorship during the year

There was no director who was appointed/ceased/re-elected /re-appointed during
the year.
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The company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time Key Managerial
Personnel pursuant to the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and its applicable
rules thereon. The Provision of Section 149 for appointment of Independent Director
do not apply to the Company.

Number of meeting of the Board:

The dates on which the Board of Directors met during the financial year under review
are as under:

Sr. No. | Date of Board Meeting
1 08th June 2023

2 28th September 2023

3. 28t November 2023

4. 19th December 2023

D 09t February 2024

The date on which the Members met during the year under review are as under:

Sr. No. | Type of Meeting Date of Meeting

1. Annual General Meeting 14t June 2023

2. Extraordinary General | 30t November 2023
Meeting

Secretarial Standards

The Company has generally complied with the Secretarial Standard-1 (Meetings of
Board of Directors) and Secretarial Standard-1I (General Meetings) issued and amended
time to time, by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Particulars of Employees

The information required under Section 197 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of
employees of the Company, will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of
the Companies Act 2013, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and
others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees” particulars which is
available for inspection by the members at the Registered office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the company up to the date of ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
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8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company was not required to appoint and did not appoint Independent Directors
under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtained.

Annual Return

In accordance with the requirements under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the
Act and the applicable rules, the annual return as on March 31, 2024 is available on the
website of the Company https://www.flairworld.in/investor-relation.html.
Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or
disclaimers made by the auditors in their reports

The Auditors Report on the financial statement of the Company is part of this
Directors” Report. There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to Section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Deposits

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not invited/ accepted any
deposits from the public covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and
accordingly, the disclosure requirements stipulated under the said Chapter are not
applicable. There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on March 31, 2024.

Board Committees

The Company is not required to constitute any statutory committees i.e. Audit
Committee as per Section 177, Nomination and Remuneration Committee &
Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Section 178 and Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee as per Section 135 as it does not fall within purview
of the said Sections of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was also not required
to form Vigil Mechanism.

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of women at Work place
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at work place in
line with the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder for prevention
and redressal of Complains of Sexual Harassment at workplace.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal
Complaints Committee(ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All the women employees,
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13)

14)

15)

i1,

iii.

v.

Vi.

Permanent, Contractual, Temporary and trainees are covered under this policy. The
said policy has been uploaded on the Internal Portals / Leaflets of the Company for
information to all employees.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, no cases in the nature of Sexual harassment were
reported at any work place of the Company.

Directors” Responsibility Statement

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, and in relation to the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Board of
Directors hereby confirms that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the
Directors have made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so0 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that year;

proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern
basis;

internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively;

proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto is disclosed in
Form No. AOC-2 (Annexure -I).

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Investments in Securities:

During the period under review, the Company has taken loans from its Directors, Its
Holding Company and Financial Institutions. The Company has not given any
guarantee, have not made any investments in any securities (in whatsoever form it
may be). Details of Loans taken, Guarantees and Investments covered under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the applicable Rules of the Act are
given in the notes to the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report.
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16)

17)

18)

Payment of Remuneration / Commission to Directors from Holding or Subsidiary
Company

None of the directors had received any remuneration / commission on behalf of our
Company from its Holding Company and the Company do not have any subsidiary.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has put in place adequate system of internal finance controls,
commensurate with its size and nature of its operations. During the year no material
weakness in its operating effectiveness was observed.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption
have been furnished below considering the nature of activities undertaken by the
company during the year under review.

Conservation of energy:

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The Company applies strict control
to monitor day to day energy consumption. The Company ensures optimal utilization
of energy to minimize the wastage as far as possible. The energy parameters such as
maximum demand, power factor, load factor, Time of Day tariff utilization are
monitored on regular basis. The inefficient equipment is replaced with latest energy
efficient technology and the equipment is upgraded on regular intervals. The
following are the awareness regarding saving the energy;

1. Replaced several old electronics with energy efficient 5-star rated products.

2. Installed LED Lights and Fixtures in manufacturing unit at Valsad.

3. Installed upgraded Servo based power saving molding machines in our
manufacturing unit.

4. Retro fit process is conducted on regular basis which helps to increase the

productivity.

All equipments are regularly maintained for better efficiency.

6. Operational Method is improved continuously for optimizing the use of energy.

oy

Technology absorption:

The Company keeps on reviewing new technology for its line of business. It absorbs
and adapts the technologies on a continuous basis in the area of product innovation
and renovation, improvement in yield, product quality, input substitution, cost
effectiveness and energy conservation to meet its specific needs from time to time.
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C.  TForeign Exchange Farnings and Outgo:

Activities relating to exports; initiatives taken to increase exports: - Development of
Innovative packaging and products for export markets along with improvement in
quality, cost and lead time.

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars Period Ended | Period Ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

;Actual Foreign Exchange | 398.24 51.49

| Earnings

| Actual Foreign Exchange | 2,588.27 737.27

| Outgo - ' i

19) Disclosure of Orders Passed by Regulators or Courts or Iribunal

No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have
impact on the going concern status and on the Company’s operations in future.

20) Acknowledgments

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and acknowledge
with gratitude the support and co-operation extended by the regulators, creditors,
bankers, shareholders, and employees, who have helped in the day to day

management.
I'or and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(ANER WGy,
Place: Mumbai Khubilal Jugraj Rathod ~ Vimalchand Jugraj Rathod
Dated: July 19, 2024 Director Director

(DIN-00122867) (DIN: 00123007)
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ANNEXUREI

FORM NO. AOC -2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars ‘_ Details
a) |Name (s) of the related party & nature of | Nil
relationship _
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transaction ' Nil
¢) | Duration of the  Nil
contracts/arrangements/ transaction
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Nil
transaction including the value, if any ,
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | Nil
arrangements or transactions’
f) Date of apprové] b;/ the Board Nil - o
' 8) | Amount paid as advances, if any | Nil

h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed | Nil
| in General meeting as required under first proviso |

to section 188
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. Particulars Details

No.

a Name (s) of the related | Flair Writing Industries Limited- Holding Company
party & nature of
relationship

b Nature of | Sale of | Purchase of | Rent paid Loan taken | Loan repaid,
contracts/arrangemen | Goods, goods, Interest paid
ts/ transaction Assets,

License

c Duration  of  the | On going On going 1 year On going On going
contracts/arrangemen
ts/ transaction

d Salient terms of the | Business Business Business Business Business
contracts or | Transaction | Transaction | Transaction | Transaction | Transaction
arrangements or | Rs.1170.98 Rs.1178.12 | Rs.132.60 Rs.7421.86 | Rs.3191.19
transaction including | Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
the value, if any

e Date of approval by [ NA NA NA NA NA
the Board

f Amount  paid as | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
advances, if any

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
oo

Place: Mumbai
Dated: July 19, 2024

R Lge,, WP

Vimalchand J. Rathod
Director

Khubilal J. Rathod

Director
(DIN- 00122867)

(DIN: 00123007)




JESWANI & RATHORE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

408/C, NIRANJAN, 99, MARINE DRIVE, MUMBAI-400 002
TEL NO: +91 22 22816968/22834451/40066968
Email: jeswani.rathore@gmail .com

independent Auditor's Repori

To the Members of Flair Writing Equipments Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Flair Writing Equipments Private
Limited (“the Company") which comprise Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flows Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended (“the Act"}) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, [“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generclly accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as ai
March 31, 2024 and its profits, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Financial Statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, These maiters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.




sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.

1 Revenue recognition (Refer note 2.7 of the Financial Statements)

Revenue is one of the key profit drivers and | Our audit procedures with regard to revenue
is therefore susceptible to misstatement. | recognition included testing  controls,

Cut-off is the key assertion in so far as | automated and manual, around
revenue recognition is concerned, since an | dispatches/deliveries, inventory
inappropriate cut-oft can result in material | reconciliations, substantive testing for cut-ofts
misstatement of results for the year. and analytical review procedures.

information Other than the Financial Siatements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is @
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
accounting Standards (“Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accouniing records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management and Board of Director's are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of
Director's either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Siatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected tfo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepficism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nof
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overide of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materidlity is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year
FBysqudit maiters. We describe these matters in our




auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report]) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Cenfral Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

al

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

1.

We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far gs it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flows Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect tfo the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of
such conftrols, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B" to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(14) of the Act, as amended;

The provisions of Sections 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable
to Fublic Companies and hence, the reporting under this clause is not applicable to the
company;

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company did not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its Financial
Statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transfered to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested [either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to offf eRyather person or enfity, including foreign entity




(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ulfimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations as provided under sub clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(o) above, contfain any
material misstatement.

[v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail [edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso o Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trall as per the statutory requirements for record refention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No.104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathore

(Partner)

M. No: 012807

UDIN: 24012807BKHGBO3075

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024



JESWANI & RATHORE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

408/C, NIRANJAN, 99, MARINE DRIVE, MUMBAI-400 002
TEL NO: +91 22 22816968/22834451 /40066968
Email: jeswani.rathore@gmail.com

Annexure "B" fo the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Flair Writing Equipments Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Flair
Writing Equipments Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our
audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and erors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infermation, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference fo these Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Financial Statements.




Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed
ta provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements inclucies
those policies and pracedures that:

1. Pertain fo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:;

2 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and;

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fimely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial confrols with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management overmde of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference fo Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in condifions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference io Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the intemnal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. N0.104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathore
(Partner)

M. No: 012807
UDIN: 24012807BKHGBO3075
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 25, 2024



JESWANI & RATHORE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

408/C, NIRANJAN, 99, MARINE DRIVE, MUMBAI-400 002
TEL NO: +91 22 22816968/22834451/40066968
Email: jeswani.rathore@gmail.com

Annexure "A" to the independent Auditors' Repori of even date on the Standalone Financial

Statements of Fiair Writing Equipments Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1, under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our Report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations socught by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

i.

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a)

b)

c)

d)

)

(il The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(i) The Company has no intfangible assets.

The Company has a phased program for physical verification of the Property, Plant and
Equipment and Right-of-use assets. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable considering the size of the company and nature of its Property, Plant and
Equipment and Right-of-use assets. Physical verification of the assets has been carried out
by the Management during the year pursuant to the program in that respect and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not
own any immovable property.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (Including right of use
assets) during the year.

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

In respect of its inventories:

(a) The inventory, except goods-in-fransit and stocks lying with third parties, has been

(o)

physically verified by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties
at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit
subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory records. In ocur opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as
followed by management were appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

As disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements, The Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis
of security of current assets and movable Property, Plant and Equipment. In our opinion,
the quarterly statements filed by the company with such banks are not in agreement with
the books of account of the Compa d the details are as follows:




(Rs. In Lakhs)

Quarter Amount as | Amount as | Difference Reason for discrepancies
ended on per books | reportedin
of accounts the
. statements
March 31, 6,011.48 6,020.89 (9.41) The Quarterly statement submitted with
2024 Banks were prepared and filed before the
December 3,605.51 3.593.36 12.15 completion of all financial statement
31, 2023 closure which led to the above
September 3,289.71 3,222.04 67.67 differences between the books of
30, 2023 accounts and quarterly statement
June 30, 2023 3,123.10 3,109.99 13.11 submitted with Banks based on provisional
books of account.

iil.

Vi,

vil,

viii.

On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, o companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iii)(a) to {ii)(f) of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified
under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause
(iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has nof specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company's products/ services. Thus reporting under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undispufed statutary dues including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to
it with appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues that which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the income-tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (viii) of paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any banks and related parties during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or government authofty: ==

g%




xi.

xii.

xiii.

xiv.

XV.

(c) The Company has utilised the money obtained by way of term loan during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained,

{d} On an overall of examination of the financial statement of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short ferm basis have been used for long ferm purpose by the Company.

(e] Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not taken loan from any entity or any person on account of or to meet
the obligation of its subsidiaries, joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix) (e] of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any funds during the year on the pledge of securities held in ifs
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates Companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(f)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (x)(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
(x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the Standalone Financial Statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014 with Central Government.

(c) Based on our audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints were received by the company during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xi)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable fo the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Note 32 of financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion, internal audit as per Section138 of Companies Act, 2013 not applicable to the
Company, hence the reporting under this clause (xiv)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
nct applicable fo the company.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence, provision of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.




XVi.

Xvil.

xviii.

xix,

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(a)(b) and (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2014) and accordingly reporting under
clause (xvi)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the Financial Statements, ageing and
expected dates of redlisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the Company is
nof capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities faling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (4) of section 135 of
the Companies Act. Hence reporting under clause (xx)(a) and (xx}(b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Jeswani & Rathore
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No.104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathore

(Partner)
M. No: 012807
UDIN: 24012807BKHGBO3075

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024



FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U346991DD2019PTCO07854

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars 023 |
ASSETS
1) Non-Current Assets
_cJ Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3.426.97 2.676.94
b} |Right-af-Use Assets o I 689.60 871,23
c) |Financial Asséfs- - = e -k
i) Other Finoncial Assets - i 9388 | 25
d) |Current Tox Assets (Net) 3 0.9% 012
g) [Qther Nen-Current Assets 4 1,540.55 78.86
Total Non-Current Assets ' 5,752.00 3,669.67
2) |Current Assets N !
a |inventaries B 5 298578 | ,327.61
b) Financial Assets B - _ - e
i} Trade Receivables & 2.099.23 ) 1, 44617
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 2.47 1541
iijLoan ' 8 005 040
c) Other Current Assets 4 791.43 712.65
Total Current Assets - o 5,878.96 4,502.24
~ |Total Assets o - 0.9 :
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - . B
Equity ' -
a) |Equity Share Capital 9 1.00 B 1.00
b |Cther Equity ) 0 1,445.17 957.55
| Total Equity - - ' | 1,446.17 958.55
Liabilities o
1 |Non-Current Liabilities .
a] |Financial Liabilities
| Borowings 1" 7,567.91 3,344.96
i] Lease Liabiifies I 574.50 736.27
b] |Deferad Tox Liabilifies (Nef] ' 13 56.42 ) 47.62
Total Non-Current Liabilities ' 8,196.83 4,128.85
| 2) |Current Liabilifies o I - il
| a |Finoncial Liobilities o ' - I
i) Borrowings ' n 63527 1,049.82
il Lease Liabilifies B - 12 161.77 _ 146.11 |
il Trade Payables
Total Oufstanding Dues of Micre and Small Enferprises o 14 21584 684.56
Total Qutstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 14 580.50 915.35
iv) Other Financicl Liobilfies - - ' 15 188.11 19127
b) (Provisions - T (. . 38.40 30,16
c) |Other Current Liabilties 17 193.28 42.40
d] |Current Tax Liabilities (Net) ' 18 257 24,82
Total Cumrent Liabilities ' B 1,985.95 3,084.50
Total Liabilities 78 7,213.35
Total Equity and Liabilifies o

The material accounting policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Note 1 to 42)

As per our affached Report of even date
For Jeswani & Rathore For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Flair Writing Equipments Private Limited
(Firm Reg. No.104202W)

A

Khubilal G. Rathore Sumit Rathod Vimalchand Rathod

(Partner) Director Director
M.No. 012807 (DIN. D2987687) (DIN. 00123007)
Mumbal

Date: Moy 25, 2024



FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U36971DD2019PTC009854

PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

INCOME ) ]
1 |Revenue from Operations 19 8,134.01 50146.786
2 _Olher Income - 20 30.56 14.62
Total Incame (A) 8.164.57 5,031.40
3 |EXPENSES B |
_ (a) Cost of material consumed - 21 4,663.17 379504
{b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 22 (31 O._E]_?} (1.236.18)
(c) Employee Benefit Expense 23 B44.52 4 490.65_
(d) Finance Costs B 24 469.39 258.54
(e] Deprecialion and Amortisation Expenses 25 60116 326.61
(f] Other Expenses 26 1,284.40 664.04
Total Expenses {B) 7.574.27 4,298.70
4 |Profit for the year Before tax ( E;A- B]_ | 590.30 732.7G
5 |Tax Expense: - .y
{a) Current Tax 23.84 102.88
™ (b) Deferred Tax Expenses/|Credit) 13 a 8.80 23.82
(c} Shori!{IExcess] Provision of tax relating to earlier years _ 0.05 0.00
_ _T_o_lgi Tax Expenses - ~ (D) _ B i 102.6% 126.71
6 |Profit for the year after tax (E=C-D) ' - 487.62 605.99
7 |Earnings per share _Il_'r Rs_. . .
Basic Earnings Per Share 27 4,876.17 - 6,059.90
Diluted Eamings Per Share 27 4,876.17 6,059.90

The material accounting policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Note 1 to 42)

As per our attached Report of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No.104202W)

Khubilal G, Rathore
(Pariner)

M.No. 012807
Mumbal

Date: May 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Flair Writing Equipments Private Limited

Sumit Rathod
Director
(DIN. 02987487)

Vimalchand Rathod
Director
(DIN. 00123007)



FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U38991DD2019PTCO0%854

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. In lakhs)

Cash Flow From Operallng A\:ﬁv ﬂes .

Frof t before fox 590.30 732.70
a_&_aj;s_ﬁ'nen!'s for: .

Deprecac:nan and Amaortisation Expenses _ R ) 1501_1 6| ) B 3_2!561
Finance Costs 469,39 258.54
:P(DFT]ILoss of sates of of Froperty, Plant and Equipment B {2.07) =
Operating Profit Before Change in WUrkIng Capiltal ~ 1.658.78 1,317.85
Movements in working capital: o

tlncreose] in Trade Receivables {653.05) {804.57)
(Increase] rn_lnventongi B 1658.18) (1.798.78)
(Increase| in Other Financial Assets and Other Asseis (1,591.83) (412.37]
(Increase]/Decrease in Loan 0.35 (0.40)
Increase/(Decrease] in Trade Payables (803.57) 1,148.23
Increase/ [Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities and Other Liabilities 126,16 {79.81)
Cash Generated From/(Used In) Operations (1,921.35) (629.83)
Income Taxes Paid (Net) {117.01) (87.41)
Net Cash Generated From / (Used in) Operating Activilies (A) (2,038.35) (717.23)
Cash Flows From !mre:hng Activities -

Purchases of Proparty, Flant and Eqmpmen‘r (1.172.15) {1,247.20)
Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment and Infangible Assed 4.66 -
N_ei_Cash Generated From / (Used In) Investing Activities (B) (1.167.49) (1.247.20)
Cash Flow From Financing Aclivities a )

Proceeds from Borrowings ) 3.808.41 2.242.75
Finance Costs Faid y - {395.91) = (242.10)
E’epuvmem of Pnnc:pc:! Ponlo_r! E[L@Eig_l.lg_tﬂllmes (219.80) [42.20)
Net Cash Genernled From / (Used In) Financing Activities (c) 3,192.90 1,978.45
(Net Ir Increuse,’{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equl\ralenh (A+B+C) (12.94) 14.02
Cash and Cash Eguivalents af the Begmmng of the Year 15.41 1.3%
(Cash and Cash Eguivalents At The End of the Year 247 15.4]
Components Of Cash And Cash Equivalem:

Cash on Hand B 230 - 066
Balances with scheduled barks ] .
__Jﬁ_c_urreni Accounts 0.17 14.75
Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 247 15.41

Note:

1] The cash flow staterment has been prepared under the "indirect Method” as set out Indian accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) statement

of cash flow.

2) The figures for the comesponding previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

The rmaterial cccounling policies and occompanying nofes ara an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Note 1 o 42)

As per our attached Report of even date
For Jeswani & Rathore

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No.104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathare
(Partner)

M.No. 012807
Mumbai

Date: May 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Flair Writing Equipments Private Limited

Sumit Rathod
Director

(DIN. 02987687)

Vimalchand Rathod
Director

(DIN. 00123007)



FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U369910DD2019PTCO09854

Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Equity Share Capitai:

(Rs. In lakhs )}

(Rs. In lakhs )

b. Other equity
(Rs. In lakhs )

Balance as af April 1, 2022 - - 349.11
Add : Profit for the Yeer o 80559
Add: Amortization Expengés of Lease deposit of earlier Years 2.45
Balance as at March 31, 2023 957.55
Balonce as at April 1,2022 - 957.55
Add : Profit for the Year - 48?.62
Balance as al March 31, 2024 1.445.17

The material accounting policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements (Note 1 fo 42)

As per our attached Repaort of even date

For Jeswani & Rathore

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg. No.104202W)

Khubilal G. Rathore

(Partner)
M.No. 012807

Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Flair writing Equipments Private Limited

/ .

Sumit Rathod Vimalchand Rathod
Director Director
(DIN. 02987687) (DIN. 00123007)



FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Flair Writing Equipments Private Limited (‘the Company') is @ Company domiciled in India, with its
registered office situated at 370/2-A, Daman Vapi Road, Kachigam, Nani Daman, Daman, Daman
and Diu — 396210. The Company has three (3) manufacturing units and Is wholly Owned Subsidiary
Company of Flair Writing Industries Limited. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and
dealing in writing instruments, stationeries and others allied(s). The Cempany has incorporated in

India as per provision of Companies Act, 2013.

2, SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to comply with the Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standurds) Rule 2015, and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
caccounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial

statements.

All the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as Current or Non- Current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set outf in Schedule Il to the Act. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in

cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained the operating cycle to be 12 months.

b) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in “Indian Rupees”, which is the Company's
functional currency. All amounts in the financial statenrents have been rounded off to the

nearest Lakhs or decimal thereof, unless otherwise stated




2.2. USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilifies
as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or

information in the financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions
and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable
under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to

accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

* Determination of the estimated useful life of Property Plant and Equipment:

Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful life, after taking into
account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful life and residual
values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful life and residual values are based on the
company's historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are

significant changes from previous estimates.

* Recoverability of trade receivables
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue frade receivables and
determining whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered
include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and fiming of anticipated future
payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

* Provisions
Provisions and liabiliies are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there wil
be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash
outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability

requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be




subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and

revised fo take account of changing facts and circumstances.

* Application of Discount rates
Estimates of rates of discounting are done for measurement of fair values of certain financial

assets and liabilities, which are based on prevalent bank interest rates and the same are

subject to change.

= Current versus Non-Current Classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as Current or Non Current as per the
Company's normal operating cycle of twelve months and other criterig set out in Schedule Il to

the Companies Act, 2013.

* |mpairment of Nen-Financial Assets
The impairment provision for non-financial assets Group estimates asset's recoverable amount,

which is higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Unifs (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or CGU's. Where the
cdrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken info account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate

valuation model is used,

* |mpairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgments in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs fo the impairment calculation, based on company's past history, existing

market conditions as well as forward looking estimates af the end of each reporting period.

= Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses for which there is probability of utilisation against the future taxable profit. The
Company uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognised,

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and business developments
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il.

PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

i.

Tangible Assets

» Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of recoverable taxes,
frade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on toreign
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to

the assets,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated

with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

¢« Capital Work-In-Progress
Capital Work-in-Progress includes expenditure during construction period incurred on
projects are freated as pre-operative expenses pending allocation to the assets. These
expenses are apporfioned to the respective fixed assets on their completion /

commencement of commercial production.

Depreciation :

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using straight-ine method.
Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in accordance with the
Part C of Schedule - Il of Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following assets, where
useful life is different than those prescribed in Part C of Schedule |l.

The useful life of major assets is as under:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Electrical Installation 10
Office Equipments 5
Flant & Machinery 15
Factory Equipments 5
Mould 8
Computer & Software 3
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ii.

[ Two Wheeler 10

f Vehicle a8

The residual values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on addition to assefs or on sale/discardment of assets, is calculated pro rata from the

date of such addition or upto the date of sale/discardment, as the case may be.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss when the assets is derecognized.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets- Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and equipment and group of assets, called cash generating units (CGU's) may be
impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating units
is estimated to determine the exient of impairment, if any. When it is not possible o estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating units to which the asset belongs,

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in

the estimate of recoverable amount.

Finance Costs

Finance costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of fime fo get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in conneclion with the
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borrowing of funds.
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2.6.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is the company's functional

currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the

functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on setflement or translation of monelary items are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss and costs that are directly atfributable to the acquisition assets, are

capitalized as cost of assets.

MNon-manetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a foreign cumrency are recorded
using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these

tfransactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo fransfer a lickility in an
orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that 1he transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability
fakes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to

another market parficipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs




2.7

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the tair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

s Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thaot is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assefs and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stalerments on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transiers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuer's are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties, unquoted
financial assets etc, if needed. Involvement of independent external valuers is decided upon
annually by the Company. Further such valuation is done annually at the end of the financial year

and the impacit, if any, on account of such fair valuation is taken in the annual financial statements.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the fair

value hierarchy as explained above,

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technigques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions could affect the reported value of fair value of

financial instruments

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues from sale of manufaciured goads and related services.Revenue

from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services fo a
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customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be
entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligaiion is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that perfermance obligatfion. The transaction price
of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered
by the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on the
expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent
that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty

relating to its recognition is resolved.

Sale of products:;
Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred

to the customer. The performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time
i.e.. when the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be

specified in the confract

Export Enfitements

Export enfitlements such as duty drawback, Credit under MEIS, RODTEP etc are recognised as
income when the right to receive the same as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect
of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate

redlization.

Other Income
Interest income is recognized on fime proporfionate basis taking into account amount outstanding

and rate of Interest.

Tax Expenses
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of

Profit and Loss.
s Current tax:
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the Income Tax authorities, based on fax rates and laws that are enacted or

substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet dale




2.9.

2.10.

s Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred lax liabllifies are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or pari of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settied or the asset is redlised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been eriacted or subslantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of Deferred fax liabilities and assetfs are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period,

Inventories
Inventories include Raw Materials, Packing Materials and Stores and Spares. that are measured at
cost and Finished Goods Inventories that are measured at lower of, cost and net realisable value

after providing for obsolescence, if any.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including
manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred i bringing them to their respective

present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis

Net Realisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Raw Materials and other supplies held for use in production ¢f inventories are not written down
below cost except in the case where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost

of the finished product will exceed its Net Realisable Value

Leases
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a

term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
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2.12.

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operaling expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Certain lease arrangements include the options
to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they wili be exercised. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful lite of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their camrying amounts may not be
recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset

belongs.

The lease liability is initiclly measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabllities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option. Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet

and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occcurrence of one ar more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits will be required 1o settle or a reliable estimate of amount cannot be made.

Provision
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
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will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

It the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the iisks specific fo the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employee Benelits Expense

Employee benefits include bonus, compensated absences, provident fund, employee state

insurance scheme and gratuity fund.

a) Short-term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period when

the employees render the services.

b) Compensated Absences
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or en-cashed within

12 months from the end of the year, are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation fowards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated
absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entiflement

as at the year end.

c) Payments of Bonus:

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonus. The Company recognizes a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practices that has created a

constructive obligation.

Financial Instruments

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another enfity.

Financial Instruments also covers contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be setftled net
in cash or another financial instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments, as if the contracts

were financial instruments, with the exception of contracts that were entered into and continue to




be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the

enfity's expected purchase, sale or usage requirements.

{i)Financial assets

a. Initicl Recognition and Measurement
All Financial Assets are initially recognized at Fair Value. Transaction costs that are directly

atiributabie to the acquisition or issue of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which are not
at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are adjusted to the Fair Value on initial recognition.

Purchases and Sales of Financial Assets are recognized using trade date accounting.

b. Subsequent Measurement

1) Financial Assets measured at Amorlised Cost

A Financial Asset is measured al amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose

objective is to hold the assels in order to collect coniractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of financial asset give rise cn specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2) Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profif or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL.

c. Loans, Deposits and Receivable
Loans and receivable are non-derivative financial assetfs with fixed or determinable payment

that are not quoted in the active market. Such assels are carried at amortised cost using the

effactive interest method, if the time value of money is insignificant.

d. Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, The Company uses "Expected Credit Losses (ECL)" model, for

evaluating impairment of Financial Asset other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit

and Loss (FVTPL)

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to

« The 12- months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrumenis that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

« Full lifetime expected credit losses|expected credit losses that result from all possible

default events over the life of the financial instrumeant)




The Credit Loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual
or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable evidence including that

which is forward-looking.

Trade Receivables

Customer Credit Risk is managed by the Company established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date on an individual basis based on historical data. The Company is receiving
payments from customers within due dates and therefore the Company has no significant
Credit Risk related to these parties. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with

respect to frade receivables as low.
For other assets, the company uses 12 month ECL te provide for impairment loss where there is
significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is

used.

Ofher Financial Assets mainly consists of Security Deposit, other deposits, Interest accrued on

Fixed Deposits, other receivables and Advances measured at amortized cost.

Following is the policy for specific financial assets:-

Type of financial asset | Policy

Security Deposit Securty deposit is in the nalure of statutory deposits like
electricity, ftelephone deposits. Since they are kept with

Government bodies, there is low risk.

Loans to employees The Company avails guaraniee for loan provided to employees.
In case of default in repayment of loan, the same is recovered

from the salary of the guarantor.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

a.

Initial Recognition and Measurement
All Finencial Liabilifies are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly

attributable cost. Fees or recurring nature are direcily recognized in the Statement of Profit

and Loss as finance cost.
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The Company's Financial Liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and other payables, financial guarantee confracts and derivative
financial instruments.

b. Subsequent Measurement

Financial Liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For
frade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet dafe, the

carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

ol De-recognition of Financial Instruments

The company de-recognizes a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
of the Financial Asset expire or it fransfers the Financial Asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial Liability (or part of Financial Liability) is de-
recognized from the company’s Balance Sheet when obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
d. Olfselting of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to setfle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents include Cash and Cheque in hand, Bank balances, Demand Deposits

with Banks and other Short-Term highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original

maturity is three months or less.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect Method where by the Profit Before Tax is adjusted for the
effect of the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future
operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operafing, investing and financing activities of the

company are segregated.
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2.1%.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the period attributeble to
the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the period.

Diluted Earnings per Share
Diluted Earnings per Share is ccleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of dll the dilutive potential Equity shares

into Equity shares

Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of ‘manufacturing and dealing in writing instruments,

stafioneries and others allied(s)', which in the context of Ind AS 108 - "Operating Segment’ notified

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, is ccnsidered as the only segment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

A. Changes in material accounting policy information
The Company has applied new standards, interpretations and amendments issued and effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023. This did not have any material changes in the

Company's standalone accounting policies

B. New and amended standards
The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from
01 April 2023, as below:

i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments fo Ind AS 8:
The amendments to Ind AS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates,

changes in accounting policies and the correction of emors. They also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no

impact on the Company's standalone financial statements




ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1:
The amendments to Ind AS 1 provided guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality

judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments had an impact on the
Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or

presentation of any items in the Company's standalone financial statements.

iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaclion - Amendments to
Ind AS 12:
The amendments to Ind AS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception, so

that it no longer applies to fransactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences such as leases and decommissioning liabilities. The amendments had no impact on the

Company's financial statements.

C. Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA"] nofifies new standard or amendments to the existing

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31
March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards

applicable to the Company

D. The material accounting policy information used in preparation of the financial statements

have been discussed in the respective notes.
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FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U35991DD2019PTCO07856

(Rs. In lakhs)

Non-Current

Security Deposit ) - B 53 A% 22.52
Total 9388 22.52

Current Tax Assefs B il
Income Tax Assets 0.9% 0.2
Total 0.9 0.12

Non-Current - 3
Capital Advance (Inciuding MSME) ) - 1.539.54 97.63 |
P'rapcnd Expenses - ____ ) 101 1.22
Total - 1,540.55 98.84
Cument :
Advance o Suppliers o = 34848 166.96
Balances with Govemment Autharilies N - ] 434.46 541.08 |
-P-rapcitl Experises ) - —_ o _: n - 8.41 4.61
Otners 007 =
Total 79143 712,65
Rs. In lakhs)

Euw and Packlng Mmsricxls o 5 L1393 796.16
Raw and Fl:l-cl;nng Materials - Goods in Transit N 891 -
Semi-Finished Goods - - 92359 | BIBJO
Finished Goods - ) 913.32 707.84
Stack of Spares 504 4,90
Total 2,985.78 2,327.81
# 1] Inventaries have been valued as per Note 2(7) of Significant Accounling Policies,

2} Inventories are hypathacated against Cash Credit faciiities availed by the Company fotaling Rs. 500 lakhs.

3) The cast of inventories recognised as an expense during fhe year was Rs. 4352.81 lakhs {March 31, 2023; Rs. 2558.86 lakhs).

4) The Company has no wiite-down of inventery to net realisable value as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

(Rs. In lakhs)

Trade Recelvablesd

2,099.23

1.446.17

Total

2,099.23

1,446.17

# 1) Trade Receivables are hypothecated agalnst Cash Credit focllities availed by the Company totaling to Rs. 500 lakhs.

The averoge credit perod on sales of goods is 60-80 days.

Ageing tor frade recelvables - nen-curent outstanding as al March 31, 2024 are os lollows:

Undisputed frade recelvables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Recelvables - which have s]gmﬁcanl increase in credit sk = | iy

Uncﬂsputed Tn::de Rece[vubles credit impaired # E

Dlsputad Trade Receivables- consderad good . s
Dupuied Trade Recavables which have significant increqse in credit risk = —

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit iImpaired - -

Total 1.924.38 150.51




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U34991DD201 9PTCODPESS

Agelng for frade receivables - non-current outstanding as at March 31, 2023 are as fcllows: (Rs. In lakhs}

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good - S 1.443.40 277 = i » 144617
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - ) - >
Undlisputed Trade Receivables — cradit Impaired - - E E = = <
Disputed Trade Receivables- considersd good i = = 2 5 = | =
Disputed Trode Recelvables - which have significant increase ig_cradil risk. E - = - = -

-ﬁsp_umd Trode Recta_w'dblééw credit impalred - = = = < =

Total 1.443.40 277 - = - 1.446.17
(Rs. In lakhs)

Gshgnfiand : . = : 250 Lt

Balances with Banks ) i

= In Current Accounts 017 14.75

Total 247 15.41

Current
Laans and Advances fo Employees junsecured, considered good) 005 0.40
Total 0.05 0.40




FLAIR WRITING EGUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U35991DD2019PTCO09854

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 1.00 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00
Issved, Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up:

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 1.00 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00

a) Detalls of Shareholders in the Company

Flair Wi ing Industries Limited

10,000

100%

10,000

10,000

100%

10,000

b) Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the end of the Reporting Period

|Add: Issued Duing the Year
Less: Bought Back During the Year

10,000

10,000

€) The Company has one class of Equity Shares with face value of Rs. 10 each. Each Shareholder has a voting right in proportion to his holding of the paid-up
Equity Share Capital of the Campany. Where dividend is proposed by the Board of Directars, it is subject to the approval of the Shareheldars in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM), and in the case of interim dividend, it is rafified by the Shareholders at the AGM.

i) Retoined Eornings

Balance at the beginning of the Year =) 957.55 34901
Add: Amorlization Expenses of Lease deposit of ecrlier Years o - 245
Add : Profit for the Year ended o o 487.62 405.95 |
Balance al the end of the Year 1,445.17 957.55




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U36991DD2019PTCO07856

(Rs. In lakhs)

Mon - Current
Secured - at Amortised cost

Term Loan - from Bank i o - 158.46
Unsecured - at Amorfised cost N ' - v i ]
Loan from hoiding Company ] ] - 754791 318649
Total 7.5867.91 3,344.96
Current - o - ' ) i
Secured - af Amoriised cost - - - ] o ] 1
Working édpi?ai Loan- Cash Credit - o B B 21218 __ £87.78
|Current maturities of Ldng term bc:rroivihgs . - i _ - @ sBd6| 211.29
Unsecured - at Amortised cost - - _ i - )

Loan from hclé’ing Cc—mpcﬁy_ _ . i B o _ 264,63 ) 150.76 |
Total 635.27 1,049.82

The detdils of repayment ferms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of secured loan from banks are as below:

Term Loan - from Bank = Cifi Bank M.A. |Term Loan End to End
tenor of 5 Years

with 18 months
moratorium
Repayment will
be  quarterly
basis

Cash Credit - from Bank Citi Bank M.A. |Cash Credit |INR 21218 9 50% |Revolving 345
days

Refer Note 30 for information on Company's exposure fo Interest rate, Foreign Currency and Liquidity risks.

Working Capital Loans from Bank are secured by hypothecation of all $tock and Recelvables, movable fixed assets of the Company and corporate
Guarantee of Flair Writing Industries Limited.
The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose far which it was taken af the bolance sheet date.

The Company has not defaulted on financial covenants, repayment of loans and interest during the period and previous years.
The Unsecured Loan taken from Holding Company is subject o interest @ 7.00% p.a. which is repayable upto Financial Year ending March 31, 2030,

The Campany is fillng monthly statement for Inventories, Debfors and Creditors for Raw Material with Citi Bank N.A. for werking copital focilities. The
below is summary of recencilliation of quarterly statement filed with the bank and books of accounts:

(Rs. In lakhs)

The unerly stement bmiied with Banks
were prepared and filed before the completion

March 31, 2024 601148 | 6,02089 (9.41)

December 31, 2023 o 360551 | 359336 | 1215 |efall financial statement closure which led to the
e G e above differences between the books of
September 30, 2023 3,289.71 3.222.04 47.67 |accounts and quarterly statement submitied with

Banks based on provisional bocks of account.

June30, 2023 312310 | 3,109.99 13,01
March 31,2023 T aameo| dsser| sma3
Decemberal, 2022 | 32| wen| 203
September 30,2022 - 848,16 85006  (150)

June30,2022 B 866.53 | 1375




FLAIR WRITING EGUIFMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U3&991DD201 $PTCO09854

(Rs. In Inlclu]

Lease Liahilities o | 574,50 736,37
Total 57450 736.27
Current

Lease Liabilities ) - 161.77 146.11
Total 161.77 148.11

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard -12 relafing 1o “Incame Taxes' the breckup of Delerad Tax Assels | |Liablities) is as follows
In lakhs)

Detemed lax Liabillies ) 56,42 47,42
Tolal 56.42 A47.62
Movement in Deferred Tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. In lakhs)

Delerred Tax Liabilities

Ea)eﬂy. Pm}:u]pmem ) | 54.81 19.62 o - ( 74,43

=areast e 5481 19.62 . 74.43

Deferred Tax Assels . :

Frovision for Emplayes benefif obligation s 1.45 = 6.62

Clhers - N B 183 574 > Y

Pre-operfative expenses o 018 0.18)] - =3

MEME Delayed payment 438[H) o N = 282 z 282
= == 7.9 10.83 3 18.02

Delerred Tax Liabiity (Nef) 47.62 8.80 - 56,42

Movement In Deferred Tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Liobiliies

Properly, Planf and Equipment 27| 2705 % | 5481
= e == N 2776 27.05 - 54.81
Delerred Tax Assels

| Frovision for Employee benefit obligation o i 35 159 5 518
Others = = - i 183 | | ies|
Fre-opefialive expenses i 037 oag| -] 0.18
[ —— o o R 39 323 Z 7.9
Delerred Tax Liability (Net) 23.80 23.62 E 4742

The Company offsets tax assets and labliifies If and only if it has a legally enfarceable right 1o set off cument tax assels and curent tax
llabililies and the deferad fax assets and defered fax liabiifies relate fo income faxes levied by the same fax authority.

significant management [udgment is reguired in determining provision for income tax, defered income fax assels and liabilities and
racoverability of delered Incoma lax assels. The recoverability of defered income tax assets is based on estimates of laxable income and
the period aver which defered income fax assets will be recovered.

(Rs. In lakhs)

Total Quistanding Dues Micro and Small Enterprises refer note 32 for related party } i

Tolal Ouisianding Dues of Creditors ofher Than Micro and Small Enterprises [refer nofe 32 for 580,50 91535
related parly balances)
Tolal 796.34 1,599.91

Agelng for irade payables oulstanding as at March 31, 2024 Is as follows: (Rs. In lakhs)

Dffouied dues Micro, Small and Medium Enferprises
isputed dues- Others

794.50 0.0% 135 . 79434




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U34791DD2017PTCO09856

Ageing for hade payables outstanding as at March 31

Disputed dues- Others

, 2023 Is as follows: (Rs. In lakhs)

| 91535

Total

1,53037 1,599.91

1) Trade Poyables are Non-interest bearing and are normally s

Pattern of Trade Payables.

The principal amaunt
of the yaar:

™ - Principal
=& Herest_

The amount of interest oaid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of ihe Micro, Small and

Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

The amount of inferest due and payable for the

spacified under MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of furlher inferest remaining due o
date when the inferest dues abave are octually

2) Disclosures required under Secfion 22 of the Micro,

Amount of payment made 1o ihe supplier beyond the appainted day during the year”
been paid but beyond the appoinied day during the year| but without adding the interast

he amoun of Mileres! aceiued and remdining unpaid ol

e T oi3as|  6e4ss

- . —

..... e S [ S

period of delay in making payment (which have | =" =1

7 ihe end of each accounfing year. __| =]

nd poyable even in ne succeeding years, unfil such - -
paid to the small enterprise for the purposes of
section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006.

disallowance of a deductiple expenditure under

elfled within 45-%0 days ferms, Further Refer Mote 30 for Maturity

small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006

' ni

Payalbles on accaunt of Purchase of Properl. Plant and Ecuipment ==———1C &=l &

Other Payables 134.60 132.95
158.11 191.27

Current

Provisian for Employes Benefits (Refer

Hote 28|

Tatal

Statutory Remittances
Revenue receivad inad

(Rs. In lakhs)

Cureni Tax Uabilfles
Income Tax [Met ol advance tax)

(Rs. In lakhs)

57| 24.82

2.57 24.82




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS FRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U34991DD2019PTCO0P854

Operating income
a) Sales of Products -
| Local 7.74638 488582
CEport - - - 7153 | T 12458
5} Othes Operating Revenue o N
| Sale of Scrop = ———— = Cae| 13z
 Export Incentives - - 1301 307
Total B.134.01 501478
a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers B
Revenue from Operations . - - )
Sale of Products I
Domestic = s 774638 | 488582
Export i — =5 37153 12658
Other aperaling revenus - 14,10 | o 438
Tolal 8,134.01 5016.78
b) slgnilﬁ'tl:aﬁl' Eh«n;s-la-iﬁ-a;;hﬁ&ci liabities balances during the y-é_m-rn_- o —_ == i
Opening Bolonce - .09 o
Add : Net addifions during the year - Wil e0n
Less : Revenue rscognlsed during the veur - - 593 =
Closing Balance 141.70 4.09
<) Confract liability (advances from Customers) P P T R
Advance from Customers Co4n70| 607
Tetal 141.70 4.0%
t;.l']' Reconciliation of revenue as per canfract prf:.' and as ru:egnl;d In Statement of | o e
Profit and Loss
Revenue from ccrlhclcfs with customers as pe( Conﬁucf pﬂcs 8, [32!35 : o 5017.30
Less : Discount rebates , r:recf tsete - 1444 5.40
Add Other operufmg revenue o 'ﬁj . 4.38 |
Revenue fram contracts with customers as per Statement of Profit and Loss £8,134.01 £,014.78
(Rs. In lakhs)

Interest
- Bank
e t.:}fhers .
Other Nun-Operul'lng Incame

Gain on Fareign Exchange Flaciualion (Nef)

Deveiopm ent income

Praofif-on goods Destroved by fire 2

Prol:l On Sule Of Fixed Assels o L. 207 |

Sundnr Balance W/Back S B 0.91 0.15
Total 30.56 14.42

796,16
Add: Purchase . ) soloss | 435525
Less: Inventories at the end ol the vnur 1,143.84 796,14
i 466017 3,795.04
(Rs. In lakhs)
B1B.70 148.51
- - 707 .84 121.86
'_Fo_i_q_l_{h} 1.526.54 290,34
o R s | ~gian |
| 91332 T07.84
1oful (E) 1,836.91 1,524.54
Tolal (A-B) (310.37) (1.234.18)




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U36991DD2019PTC007856

(Rs. In lakhs)

es, Wages an us
Contributicn 1o Provident and Ofher Funds (Refer Note 28) 53,45 21.65
Stalf Wellare Expenses 1031 14|
Total B4g.52 490.45

lInterest an Right of Use Assefs B - D
Other Barowing Cost ) a00.03 179.70
Interest on MSME - B ) 23 | =]
Interest on Direct Tax 0.4 508
Total 449.39 258.54
Depreciafion On Property, Flant And Equipment : 219.53 28969
Depreciofion On Right-Ot-llse Assels 181.63 36.92
Tolal 80114 326.61
{Rs. In lakhs)

Manufacluring Expenses —
Consumable Expenses . ) 1508 1051
Fleciric Power, Fusl and Water ' ' 283.64 22975
freight inward o 1337 | 634
Job Wark and Other Related Expenditure - o Cs4908| 19488
Mackine And Mould Mainlenance o - - 7510 AQH
Factory Rerit _ == ' - 5 34.80
Factary Expenses - ) 1904 a8l
Loading & Unloading Expenses o - o 2.58 125
Estoblishment Expenses
Bank Charges o ' - ' 225 043
Insuronce Expé-;ises- ' S 685 | 378
Charlty and Donafion = 815 v
Legal & Professioanl Fees ) B o O esss| 2939
Office Rent - 1 202 0.0
Poslﬁgg&—'&omer Expenses N a ) 219 031
Prinling and Stationery ) o a i 5.50 300
Miscelloneous Expenses ' o - 1.92 0,46_
e p— -~

Compuler ' = 210 0.04

Vehicles ) 1.78 0.04
m_ - 11.41 ?.93_
Telephone & Communication Charges a - 3.27 1.0
Traveling & Conveyance o =il 34,53 = 524
Paymenis fo Auditor (Refer Nole 26.1) ' 500 400
Selling and Distribution Expenses - .
Publicily and Sales Promofion expenses ) 14.92 3691
(Commission & Brokerage - | 223 0.60
Freight, Claaring & Forwarding Charges ' - 1416 | Y
freight Outward == 142.26 4025
Total 1.284.40 664,04

As Auditors: — : e
Statutory hudﬁ?eis _ . ? ,,___,__L" Eii?‘ 4,§ ' 4.00 3.@
Tox Audi Feos AR 100 100
Total =i Vi 5.00 4.00




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U36791DD2019PTC007856

Face Valve per Equity Share (l.i:s.]_ - - 10.00 10

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs) ' N . I 6.059.50
net Profit after Tax as per Statermnent of Profit and Loss mmbmablr—; to @.51 Shareholders {Rs in Lakhs}.  4BTe2 | 60599
Weighted ﬁwarc:ge numioer of Equity Shores used s dermmmqier for calculating Basic EPS e 10,000 | ) 10,000
Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs) _—— __ i_s}-g'ﬁm ) 59.90
Net r-froﬁt affer Tcx as per Slaiemenf of Profit and Loss nﬂnbuiable to Equity Shureholdars {Rsin Lukhs) |- f_&? 62 . @05.?9_
Wagh'red Averuge number of Equﬂy Shares used as denominator for ccﬂcmahng Diluted EPS 10,000 10,000

Basic EPS amounts are calculaled by dividing the profit for the year atiibutable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity
shares cutstanding during the yeor.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit aftributable fo equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potenfial
Ecqjuity shares into Equily shares.

The !oklowmg amount recognize '- ;-cpensa in Stolement of profit and loss on account of provldan fund and ofher funds, There are no ofher
obligations other than the confribution povoble 1o the respective autharifies.

{Rs. In lakhs)

Employer's Contricution to Provident Fund ! _1_6.22 10.75 |
Employers Contibution fo Pension Scheme - - 2575 _10.52

Employees Contribution To ESIC B T =
Total 53.38 21.56




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - 136991DD2019PTCO09854

(Rs. In lakks)

Financial assets

Trode Receivables - - 2.099.23 2,099.23 - - 2,09%.23 2099.23
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 2.47 2.47 - - 2.47 2.47
Loan - = 0.05 0.05 - - 0.05 0.05
Other Financial Assets - - 93.88 23.88 - - 23.88 93.88
Total financial assets - - 2,195.63 2,195.43 . - 2,195.63 2,195.43

Financial liabilities

Non-Current Bomowing - - 7.567.91 7.567.91 B - 7.567.91 7.567.9
Current Borowing - - 63527 635.27 - - 435.27 635.27
Trade Payables - - 794.34 794.34 - - 794.34 796.34
Lense Liabilifies - - 736.27 736.27 - - 736.27 736.37
Other financial Liabilifies - - 158.11 158.11 - - 158.11 158.11
Total financial liabilities - - 9.893.91 2.893.91 - - 9.893.91 9,693.91

As at March 31, 2023 (Rs. In lakhs)

Financial assels

Tradea Receivables - - 1. 448617 1,444.17 - - 1.444,17 144617
Cash and Cash Eguivalents - - 15.41 15.41 - - 15.41 15.41
Lodan - - 0.40 0.40 - 0.40 0.40
Other financial Assels - - 22,52 22.52 - - 22.52 22.52
Total financial assets - - 1,484.50 1,484.50 - - 1,484.50 1,484.50

Financial liabilities

Non-Curent Borrowing - - 334494 3,344.96 - - 3.344.55 3.344.96
Current Borowing " - 1,047.82 1,049.82 - . 1,049.82 1.049.82
Trade Payakles - - 1,599.91 1,599.91 = s 1,599.91 1,599.91
Lease Licbilities = : 882.39 882.39 - s 882.39 8A2.39
Other Financial Liabilities - - 191.27 191.27 - = 191.27 191.27
Total financial liabilities - = 7,048.35 7.048.35 - - 7.068.35 7.068.35

The financial insfruments are categorized info ihree levels based on the inputs used to armve at foir volue measurements as described
below:

Level 1: Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilifies:

Level 2; Inputs other than the quated prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liobility, either directiy or indirecthy;
and

Level 3; Inpuls bosed on uncbservable market data.

Valualion Methodology :

Fair valualion of Financial Assets and Liogiliies with shor-term maturifies is considered as opproximate fo respeclive camying amount due fo
the Short Term maturities of these Instrument,

b) The fair value is delermined by using the valuation model/technique with observable inputs and assumplions.

) All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilifies are translated using exchange rate of reporting date.

d) The fair value of the remaining financial insfruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

—




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U3s971DD2019PTCOOYBS56

Rlsk Management Framewark
The Company's Financial Risk Management is an infegral part of how fo plan and execide its business strategies. The Company's Financial Bisk Management Policy is sl
ond gavemed by tha Managing Direclor under the averall directions of the Board of Direciors of the Company.

Mewke! Risk & the risk of ioss of fulure eamings, fair values or fulure cash flaws, that may result from @ change in the price of @ Arancial Insirument, The volue of o
Financial Instrument may change as a result of changes in the interes rates, foreigr curency exchange rates, equity prices and ofher marked chonges, that affect
market risk sensifive instruments. Market Rek s alifbutable to all the market rsk sensitive Finoncial Instruments including Investmenis ond deposils, foreign curancy
receivablas, payables and loans and borrowings,

The Compary's boord of Diectors ore responsible for the day to day working of the management and fhe overall working of the Company's Risk Management
frarmework.
[} Credit dsk

Creall Risk is the risk thal a cusfomer or counlergarty foa fingncial Instrument fafls te perform or pay the amaounts dus causing financial loss to the Company. Credit Risk
orives from Company's oubktanding receivables from Customers.

The Compary's exposiure o Credit Risk i influsnced mainly by the individual cheraciensiics of each Cusfomer. Credit Risk is managed Ihrough credit approvals,
estabishing cradil lmils and confinuously monitering fhe creditworininass of fhe Customers, lo whom the Company grants credit in occordance wih the ferms and
cendifions and in erdinary course of its butiness,

The Risk Management Commitise hos aslablished o Credit Palicy under which eash naw cusiamier s analysed individually for creditwarthiness. before the Company's
standard payment and delivery ferms and condilions are offered, Further for domesfic sales, he Company segments its Customenrs imo Super Sockiest! Disibutors cnd
Orthers, for credit menitening.

For Trode Recelvobles, fhe Comparny individually mornitors the sanclioned credit limite s aggingf the outstanding polancet. Accordingly. the Company makes specific
pravisions against such Trade Receivables, wherever requirad and manitars the same al perodic inferval,

The Company manilors sach Loan and advance given and makes any spacific provision, as and when reguired,

The Company establishes an allewance far imparment that repressrts its estimate of expecied losses in respect of Trade Receivobles and Loans and Advances.

Trade recelvables

Cusiomer Credit Risk Is manoged by Ihe Company's established policy, procedures and conirol relating fo custemer credil risk managemenl, An impairment analysis i«
perfamed of each repariing date on an individual basis based on historical gato. The Company & receiving paymenis from customers within due dates and Marefore
the Company has na signiicant Credit Risk releled to thate parfies. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respec! 1o frade receivables ds low.

Agelng of Trade Receivables are as follows:

(Rs. In lakhs)

i

Démonths — = — _— 192438 | 144540 |
4 manths fo 12 manths ) N I . -l 277
beyond 12 manths 24,34 ’
Tetal 2,099.23 144617
1y Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk arises from the Company's inability to meet its cash flow commitments en lime, Frudent Lguidity Risk Managemen! impies mainfaining sufficient cath and
markeloble securities ond the availabiity of funding through on adequate smount of committed credif facilifies fo meet obligations when due and fo closs oul market
positians. In addilion, proceses and policies relaled fo such sk are aversesn by the Senier Management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidily posilion
fhvough rolling lerecasts on the basis of expacied cosh llaws.

The: Campany’t approach fo managing liquidity is o ensure, ds for os possicle, fhat it will heve sufficient figuidily lo meet ifs lictkilities when they are due, under both
nonmal ond shessed condltions, without Incurring unocceplakble losses of reking damage fo fhe Compeany’s reputalion,

(Rs. In lakhs)

Unutilised credil imit from bank

liguid Rato (InTimes) ) 1.25

Contraciual Matuity prefile of Financlal Liabilifles:

The following table shows the maturity analyss af Ihe Company's Financial Liobilfies bosed on confractually agreed undiscounled cash flows alang with s carrying
value as af the reporing dote:

As gl March 31, 2024 (Rs. In lakhs)

As al March 31, 2023

56245 5282 - S| 7sersr|  saoaae

Trog - 79634 R E 796.34

Lecse Lisbillies F 78.12 83.45 390,46 184.04 _ = 73827

Other financial fiabiies 158.11 - : 5 ] 158.11

Total 1.415.02 134.48 350,46 184.04 7.567.91 9.893.7
In lakl

- o 158.44 - | anmses| 439478 |
L ) 715 33512 |
Other financial licbities 5 = =
Talal 55542 33v.12 318447




FLAIR WRITING EGUIFMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U36591D02019PTCO0VESE

i) Market dsk- Currency Risk

The Company operates iniermalisnally and a porfion of 1he business is ransscled in forsign cumencles, Consequently, the Company is exposed fo forsign excharge sk
fhrough ifs purchases from oveneas markets in foreign curencies.

Exposure 1o cumency risk

The detoils of unhedged foreign curency at the exchanga role af reporting date ore:

(Rs. In lakhs)
fl_lllnnﬂul Assefs
Trade Recenales. - B - 18961 | 7540 .
Oiner Recelvabies - 2357 1.771.60 14751 3
Financial Uabilifies - ] . o '
Trade paycbles - . 1z - 1742
Oiher Payables = B - V7 18 - -
Hel exposure 2397 1.811.41 2230 (17.42)

SEMSITIVITY ANALYSIS
sansifivity andiysis of 1% change in skchange rafe at the and of reporting year.

1% Deprecialion In INR B S =
Impact cn Prafil & Lass 0.24 18.11 223 [0.17)
TOTAL 0.24 18.11 2123 10.17)
) (024 {18.11) 223)| 017

(0.24) (18.11) (223) 017

Sendlivity analysis & computed bosed on the changesin the recaivables in fareign curancy upon conversion inta funclional cumency, due o exchange rate
tiuctuotions at curent reporling year.

Iv] Market Risk - Inferest Risk

Inferest RFate Risk can be either Foir Yalue Interest Rate Risk or Cash Flow Intersst Rate Risk. Fair Valve Inferss! Retfe Risk is the risk of changes I fair values of fived interest
Beaiing investments becouse of fluctuations in the interest rates, Cash Flow Interest Rale Risk i he risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing nvesiments

will flueiuale because of fluctualions in the interss! rates.

Interest Rate Exposure
In lakhs)

Bamowings ' ' ] i
Loan from Borks o = B ©e33s|  sraz2
Unsecured Loan from holding Company & Dirsciors = ) 294,03 167.5
|nterest on righl of use Assets 73.49 16.44
Totdd o o — 450.86 4127
Impast on Inferest Expanses for fhe year an 1% change in Inferes! Rale

{Rs. In lakhs)

ail | ]
(4.61] [2.41)

1% Change in increass in Inlerest Role
1% Change in degrease in Inferes! Rale

A5 ihe Company has no significant inferest bearing assels, he income ond aperating cash flows are substaniially independent of changes in marke! inlerest rates.

v) Commodity Risk

The Company's principle raw malenalis ore o varely of Plastic Polymers which are primarly dedvatives of Crude Ol Company scurces its row material requirement
fram across the globe. Domestic market pricas generally remains in sync with Ihe Infernational market pices.

Volafilty in Crude Ol prices, Curency Huclualion of Rupee vis-6-vis ofhar prominent Currencies coupled with demand-supply scenaric in the world markel. affect the
elfectiva price and availabllity of Polymers for the Company. Comparny affeclively manogas availabillty of matericl as well as price volafility by expanding ils sourcs
base, having appropriate controcls and commitments in place and planning ils procurement ard Inveniory skategy. The Risk Commiltes of the Company comprising
of mambers from the Board of Dieclon and the opsiafiars, have developed ond enacled o Rik Management stralegy regarding Commodity Price Risk and its

mifigation.
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{a) Amounis recognised In Profit and Loss (Rs. In lakhs)
Curr_ent_i_u_:li . 9384 102.88
_Deferred tax _ _ _ Ix 8.80 2382
Tax adjustments for Eariier Years 0.05 D.00
Tax expense 102.69 126.71

{b) Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax Rote

—_

(Rs. In lakhs)

Profit betfore tax 590.30 732.70
_C'ompn:my's domestic taxrate - 17.06%| 17.16%
Income fax using the Company's tax rate B 101.30 12573
Tax effectof: i

Permanent disallowances ' i N ' (9.09) 089 |
Timing Difference - - 1.63 (2374)|
Defered tax - - 8.80 2382
Tax adjustments for Earlier Years o . 0.05 000
Income tax as per Profit and Loss Account 102.69 126.71
Effiective Tox Rate 17.40% 17.29%




FLAIR WRITING EQUIPRENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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{a) FParties where conirol exisis whether or not ransactions have taken place:

{ij  Naiure of Relationship Mame Of Related Farty
Holding Company Har Writing Indusiries Limited
[l Enterprises over which any parson descrinad In () above Pantel Stationery (India) Pyl Lid
s aple 1o influence [The Enlerprises|: Har Pan & Plastic industies
Flar Pens Limited
Flair Wiriting Aids
Hauser Lifestyle Products

Flair Cyrosll Industries Pyt Lid

(b] Olher Reloted Parfies with whem transactions have laken |

Mature of Relalienship Name Of Related Parfy
i} Key Manogeral Persannel (KMP) tnubilal Rathod
Vimalchond Ralhod
Rojesh Rathod
Mehit Rothod
Sumit Rathod
[i} Relafive of Key Managerial Personnal (KMF) Joyesh Join

&) Transactions with Related Porfies (Rs. In lakhs}

1 ,Sqlc Of Goods

" |Fioi wiiting Industries Limited - - Halding Company ' 117058 e
) Pentgl_STahonery_{er!uJ Pt Ud R En!erpdses aver which any parson described in i s 52,64 I.Ig_
~ |Houser Litestyle Products - i above s able 1o influence & | 10437
N Flair Cyresi industries Put Lid o - 4322 |
2 |tabour Charges - i == - — ) ]
Flar Wriling Industries Limited _ Hoiding Company s —
3 |Renl Pald = S O — 1
~ |Flai wrlrlng lndm!ﬂes Limited B Holding Company 132.80 4440
Enterprizes over which any persen descrined in ﬂ 1,42 i
= — above i able to influerce [ 49.60 2980
— — 1800 | 340 |
4 SR } o R el
—c H:Hdng Company 117802 75215
R Huwa: hfes‘h-’la % oo ine Erierprises over which any person descrived in {i] - 56546
- Penteliiqtmler\r (ncig)Putlld above is abde fa Influence A o ke
Flnu‘ Cyml Indushiss Pyl ud - Fetrd |
_5 [Purchase Of Assets - - ) "
Wsmﬂs Limiled - B Helding Comparny e 34.80 11.55 |
Figr Pen & Plosfic Incusires } Enlarprises over which any person described in () - 20,00 |
 |Hauser Ll‘fﬂ&«hﬂﬂ Pradul:is ] ﬂbﬂﬂ-’f ts able fo Influence 35 30 35,92

4 Puwm:Cqugu R - _ ) ___ TRASS
Flair Writing Aidis Enterprises over which any peron described in i) 10.58 =
' . 4 gbove is oble to influsnce

7 |Purchase Ofi}cmco . B -
|Figir wmmg Industries Uimited - Helding Company - 281

|8 |CommisionPald s - :
Jayesh Jain Relaiive of Key Managerial Peronne! B 1.83 -

9 |Adverfisement And Sales Promation Expense - N ;
Fl.c:ur wrifing Industiies Lirniled Holding Company = 131

10 Dlitcla;jﬁunag:ﬂax;gmnmﬁon . o i {i
Khubilal ). Rathed ) o Kay Managerial Perennel : 7.50 1200

n f.oan‘luk!n ) - —
) F]ak thng Ind ustrias Limited . Halding Compﬁﬂ_ ?-‘2'35 ZSWBO

i2 |Lean !lpﬁ__& — . —
Flair Wriling Indusiries Limiled Iioldir\g Compary 319119 490.00

13 Imuui Expon:u

Flo¥ Wl:ﬂmé indlustries Umited - Holding Compariy 167.51
_ | Re-imbur emenluf E_xprm;a_{ﬁa}_ ) - - - = ___

Flair Writing Indt Ind-u;lrles Limited - HoldinoCamm o xse ) -

Flair Pens Limitad Enlerpr:ses owver which any parion described in {ir 0.24 -

above & oole fo influence
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(d) OQuistanding balances as at the year end

[

(Rs. In lakhs)

I Tiade Fayables )
’ Figir Willing inclusiries Limited o - Holding Company 5304
Hauser Litastyle Products . | Enterprisas cvet which any pernan described in (|} Bl 432.07
Penlel Stationery (India) Pvi Lid Cr. ~ above oble foinfluence | = 223
2 |Trade Recelvable ————— = 5
Fidi Writing inclustries Limited - Holding Company | = 19.37 |
Hauser Lileslyle Products Enferprises averwhich any person described in () - ¥2.24
“(Fio¥ Cyroai Indusiies PeiLid above s able lainfluence B 3247 ) =
3 |shore Capltal EER— = -, o L .
Fiair Wriling indusiries Limifed - Helding Company 1.00 oo
o Holding Company i 783254 333725
_ 5 [RenfPayable ; " e D e
# Flair Pan & Plasiic Indusirias | Enterprises aver whichany person cescribed in (i) - 0.52
e thng-A}d = - above k able foinfluence 0.27 272
~ |RarPensLimied o . . D% S5
& |Other payable N - - ____ S ) __
lavesh Join Relative of Key Managerial Personnel 0.37 -

The Company's Copdal Management & driven by the Company's palicy to malinioin o sound eapital bose 1o suppornt the cantinuous developmenl of is Business.

The Board of Dirsclers seek 1o mainiain a prudent balance between di
Structure ond the Hel Financial Bebt at individual curency level. Mef Financial Debt s de

Equivalents and Sharl Term Investments.

D iption of Seg tand I activities

fferent components of the Compony's Copital. The Management manilars ihe Capital
fined as Current and Non-Curren! Financigl Liabilities iess Cash and Cash

s per nd A5-108. “Operating Segment’ | specilied under the section 133 of the Companiss Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (indian Accaunfing
Standards) Rule 2015 {as amended from fime o lime] and other relevont provision of the Act ) the Group's chief operciing decision maker, i.e. Managing Director
["CODM') has iderfifisd Writing Irstrurments and ifs Alieds” os the reporable ssgments. Since the Group is having enly ane reporfable segment hence disclosure

requirement os per nd AS 108 is not opplicoble.

Geographical infarmation

The following lable provides an analysis of the Group's sales by region in which the custemer is localed. inespective of the origin of the goods.

P

For the yoor ended March 31, 2024 N 77 3p4.54 813401
For the yeor ended March 31, 2023 il [ 4887.14. 12064 501678
Non-Current Assets® . : — =

Asat Mareh 31, 2024 : o i 494753 - i 476753
Asat Marcn 31,2023 - i = 277580 z 277580

*Non-Curent assets for this pUpose excludes nen-curent investmants, non-cument financidl assels, income tax and delemead toix asals,

Infarmatien about major cuslomers
Custemer individually acceunied for more than 10% of sale of products amouniing io Rs. 2491.07 lakhs for the yeaor ended March 31, 2024, (March 31, 2023
217333 lakhs)

s per Sechian 135 of the Companias Act 2013, the Company has not fermed a Corporate Sociol Responsitlity (CSR| Commiftee. The Board hos approved C5R
Policy whers cerlaln focus oreas out of st of aclivilies covered in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act 2013, have been idenfified to incur CIR expandiiure.

Rs. in lakhs)
=y

'n]-ﬁ\rno.unl required lo be spent as per Seclion 135 of Comparies Act, 2013 8.0 F

b) Amourt Spent durng the year -

i] Con;in;clion!hcquisiﬁoﬂ of assets c;
ii) On purpose orharuihun ohove o 815 -—
c) Sharl/Excess amaunt spent under section 135 () N -

i) :m;:unr?aqulrea -Io be spent during lhe ye_c:r_ . . - S.IE_I B - i
B Ac1uol_urr|ount sp-anﬂin::.ur;d during ‘rh;\few i B.AS =
IShorv‘{ﬂTu:}qmunl lpll'l_l o - n (_IN_JSJ 3

d) Nature of C5R achivilies Edueation and Social wellare

&) Details of related party fransafions in relation fo CSR expenditure os per relevant Accounting Standard - -
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In the Statement of Profit and Loss cperating lease expenses which were recognized as other Expenses has been substituted with
depreciation expense for righl of use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liabllity. The impae! of adoption of this
standard on profitis as fallows,

(Rs. In lakhs)
{a} Reduction in Lease Rental - (219.£0) (42.20)
(b} Increase in Depreciation B 181.63 Iif_?g
i) Increqse in Interest 73,49 16,44
Net impact on Profit before Tax (35.51) (11.18)

. In lakhs)

A, Conlingent Liability
a) Disputed GST, Exclse and Service Tax Maiters ) - =
b) Incame Tax Malters o e - | ' - -
B. Commitments . )
Eslimated amount of cantracls remaining 1o be executed on capllal accaunt and not 1627.14 T 270154
provided for

Curren! Rolio (in fimes) i
decrease in
borrawings and Trade
payabiles,
Debl-Equily Ratio fin kmes)  |Total Debl Sharehoider's 618 551 12.28% T
Equity
Debt service co;era_g'e rafion Earning for Deb! |Debt Service .40 = —é?.ﬁg% Dacrease due o
(in times) Service repaymeni of
bBorowings.
Retumn on equily ralio (in %) |Nef Profit Affer |Total aquity A0.55% 9241% 5421% Decrease due to
Taxes increase in equity.
Inventory tumoverrafio in  |Cost of goods  |Averoge inventory|  2.40 253 | s14m
times) sald
Trade receivables lumover  |Revenue from Avafadé wade 4.59 81| asm |
rafio (in times) Operations receivables
Trade r'hdyabFes turmover ratio [Net Credit Averoge trade 4.18 425 -1.50% = T
in times| Purchase payables
Net capital tumeversaftio (in [Revenue from Average '-'i"ﬂrﬁi'n_g T306 7.15 -57.16% Decrease dueto
firnes) Cperations Caopital increase in working
capital recuireament
and increase in
revenus.
Netprofitratio (in %) |Net Profit Alter  |Revenue from 599% 1208%|  -5037% Decrease due lo
Taxes Operafions decrease in profit
during the year.
Returm on crapﬂal érn_pToFed_ Profit before Capltal employed | 10.15% 15.78%, -35.67%% Decrease due fo
fin %) interest and increase in
taxes borewings.
Refum on investment (in%)  |income from  |Cosl of NA®  [NA* < =1
Investment Inves !m%‘m
SH 2
@ 0N
v &
* The ratie s not applicable os the company doss not r iments ather than current operations.
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ifemalfegalilery intormetion e quired by Scheduie Il ot €

1) e proceeding have been inffiated or ate pending eoainst the Campany for holding any Benami groperty under the Benami Trensaction [Prohibilion] Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and niles made thereunder.

2) The Company hos not advanced or ipaned or invested funds fo any other pamsan(s) or sntity[les), including foreign enfiliss (Infermadiariar) with the undersianding that the Intermadiony shall:

|} directly or indirecily lend of invest in ofher perons or entifies identified in any manner whatsosver by of on behalt of the Comparny [Uiimate Benaficiaies] of

ii] provide any guarantes. security or fhe like o or on behalf of the viimole beneficianes.

The Corrpany hes not received any tund from any persan(s) o enfityliss). including forelgn enfiies (Funding Parly] with the undentanding (whether recerded in wiiting o ofhenwize) that the Campany shall:
| directly or indirscily lend orinvest in other persons or enities idenfified in any monner whatsoever by ar on behall of the Funding Party (Ultimale beneficiories) or

ii| provide any guaronies, security or fha ke o of on behalf of the vitimale beneficiones.

3) Tne Company has eomplisd with the number of loyen prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

) There it no incame surendered or disclosed o3 Income during fhe cument or previous yearin the fax ossacsments under the Income Tax Act, 1941, that has not been recorded in the books of account,

5) The Company has not fraded o invested in oryple wrensy of vitual cumency duing the cument or previous yeor.

) The Carnpony hos ot iavalued ils property, plantond equipment (including right-of-use sssels) or intangible ass=ts or both duing the curent of pravious yaar

7) The Campany & not declared as witful defaulter by any bank or financiol institufion or govemmant or any government authorly,

8) The Company hos no ransactions with the companies stuck off undsr Campanies Ach, 2013,

9) The Company do nat have any charges or solisfaction which s yel lo be registerad with Regisirar of Companies beyend the statutory perod.

10) The fitle deeds of gll the immevable properies (olher than properties whese the company it the leses and ine lease agreements are duly execuled in favour of the lesses], o3 disclosed in nofe | fo the
financkl siotements, are held in the name of the Company.

11} The borowings obigined by the Compary For banks have been applied for Ihe purposes for which il was taken.

e significant odjusting even| occured between the balance sheef date and date of the appraval of these financial slalements by the Board of Directors of fhe Campary recuiring edjusiment or disclosure.

‘“ﬁ‘\%‘ g;:
[ighrch i

been regrouped/reclasified wharever nacessary, fo make them comparobie,

The figures for the mies;-undmg pravious y has

menis appraved by the Board of Directers in thel meeting held on May 25, 2024,

For Jeswanl & Ralhore For and on behall of the Board of Direclors

Chartered Accountants Flalr Writing Equipments Privale Uimiled
{Firm Reg. No.104202W)

-—
-
Khubilal G. Rathare Iy
£
{Padner) Sumit Rathed Vimalchand Rathed
M.No, 012807 e Director Director
Mumbai {DIN. D278 7487) {DIN. 00123007)

Datfe: May 25, 2024



